City of Fort Lauderdale

City Hall 100 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 www.fortlauderdale.gov



Meeting Minutes - DRAFT

Tuesday, September 20, 2016 1:30 PM

City Commission Conference Room

City Commission Conference Meeting

FORT LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION

JOHN P. "JACK" SEILER Mayor - Commissioner
DEAN J. TRANTALIS Vice Mayor - Commissioner - District II
BRUCE G. ROBERTS Commissioner - District I
ROBERT L. McKINZIE Commissioner - District III
ROMNEY ROGERS Commissioner - District IV

LEE R. FELDMAN, City Manager JOHN HERBST, City Auditor JEFFREY A. MODARELLI, City Clerk CYNTHIA A. EVERETT, City Attorney

QUORUM ESTABLISHED

Present: 5 - Commissioner Bruce G. Roberts, Vice Mayor Dean J. Trantalis,

Commissioner Robert L. McKinzie, Commissioner Romney, Rogers and

Mayor John P. "Jack" Seiler

Also Present: City Manager Lee R. Feldman, City Clerk Jeffrey A. Modarelli,

City Attorney Cynthia Everett, and Sergeant at Arms Adam Solomon

No public comments were submitted by email for this meeting.

CITY COMMISSION REPORTS

Events and Matters of Interest

Members of the Commission announced recent and upcoming events and matters of interest.

Hotwire Communications Headquarters

Commissioner Roberts noted the relocation and opening of Hotwire Communications Corporate Headquarters from Philadelphia to the City of Fort Lauderdale on 62nd Street in the former Bank of America Building. Mayor Seiler noted receiving numerous compliments from the Governor, the Business Alliance, and others regarding the ease of working with and professionalism of our City Staff relating to their adaptability and flexibility of the City's economic development, which reflects positively on the top to bottom efforts of City Manager Feldman and City Staff.

Palm Aire Village

Commission Roberts noted his attendance at the ribbon cutting at Palm Aire Village acknowledging the various projects. Commission Roberts thanked all City personnel who assisted in this effort.

NE 13th Corridor

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the long-awaited groundbreaking of the NE 13th Corridor Complete Streets project which is the first step in making the needed improvements in this area. He also noted that this project would provide an opportunity to the neighborhood to assist in eliminating crime and improve the area with the development of both residential and mixed-use projects. Vice Mayor Trantalis thanked all those in attendance and his hopes that this is the beginning of a

renaissance in this central area of the City. City Manager Feldman stated the project should be completed by summer of 2017. Mayor Seiler raised the issue of connecting the last Saturday of the month Art Walks to this area via a shuttle. Further comments and discussions ensued regarding this area of the City's art district, which also includes a residential component as opposed to Miami's Wynwood area which does not have any residential buildings.

Amaray Apartments Opening on Las Olas

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the ribbon cutting attended by Mayor Seiler of the Amaray Las Olas at 215 SE 8th Avenue on Thursday, September 15th. The Amaray building is the City's latest a 254-unit residential development comprised of studios, one, two and three-bedroom apartments with 26 unique designs. It is a great addition to this area and assists in supporting the businesses in the area.

Middle River Terrace Neighborhood Association

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the awards presented to past president, Laura Croscenco. He also announced the new Middle River Terrace Neighborhood Association President, Colleen Lockwood.

Noise Issues

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the numerous complaints he has received in the area of Shooters because of the arrival of early morning dump trucks, motorcycles racing up and down NE 32nd Avenue, and late night music at restaurant bars in this area. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated those who live and work in this area have confirmed this is a very real problem as there is an echo chamber in this the area of NE 32nd Avenue. He asked the City to be more aggressive in addressing these noise issues. Further discussions ensued on this matter.

Flood Plain Elevation Ordinance

Vice Mayor Trantalis discussed the City's philosophy (shared by many nearby municipalities) requiring residents which have made improvements to their properties up to the fifty-one percent substantial improvement level, are required to comply with the City's Flood Plain Elevation Ordinance and bring the residence up to code. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated that the City's code states these residential improvements go back ten years toward the fifty-one percent substantial improvement level and is unfair to new purchasers of these properties. He also stated the Commission should look at this again so as to be equitable to new purchasers of properties who may fall into this category. Commissioner McKinzie agreed with the comments of Vice Mayor Trantalis.

17th Street Causeway Traffic Concerns

Commissioner Rogers discussed the meeting between the Port, the County, the City, stakeholders and property owners on the 17th Causeway Transportation Mobility Plan held on Monday, September 12, 2016. The meeting was held in an attempt to obtain a solution and reach a consensus. He noted an improvement in communications between the Port, the Convention Center, City Staff, and the County. Commissioner Rogers cited the efforts by the attendees to address traffic congestion, crime issues, and the need for something to replace a bypass road. Further discussions ensued on the City's 17th Street Mobility Plan presenting possible alternatives and other issues relating to traffic congestion in this area. Commissioner Rogers stated the City should continue to press for more solutions.

Lauderdale Isles Waterway Clean-Up

Commissioner Rogers stated that the Lauderdale Isles Waterway Clean-Up efforts resulted in the collection of 1,300 pounds of debris during clean-up efforts on September 17, 2016. He noted these efforts were enhanced with the use of the City's new larger skimmer boat.

Beach Events on South Beach Parking Lots

Commissioner Rogers noted his constituent's concern over two events scheduled during the season in the South Beach Parking Lot, one of which is supported by the BID. Discussions ensued on the concerns of the closure of the South Beach Parking Lot. Mayor Seiler noted it is only a partial closure but agreed it needs to be clarified especially for events held during the weekends. The Commission requested a calendar of events scheduled for this area. Further discussions ensued on this topic.

Building Department

Commissioner Rogers discussed the concern of one of his constituents regarding a building permit for a seawall, which has been in the City's Building Department for six months. He noted a further delay would cause this resident to lose their grant funding. Further discussions ensued on this topic. City Manager Feldman stated this particular permitting issue is part of the North Riverwalk Extension, and this permitting issue is outside of the City's Building Department. City Manager Feldman noted issues relating to permitting in this area are environmental and fall into the realm of the County's approval process. City Manager Feldman said he would reach out to this City resident. Mayor Seiler requested Commissioner Rogers to ask this resident to send him an email on this issue. Further comments and discussions ensued.

Center for Hearing and Communication

Commissioner Roberts discussed his meeting with representatives of the Center for Hearing and Communications regarding establishing a communication system for those with hearing challenges on the City's webpage. Commissioner Roberts requested City Manager Feldman include this as part of the curriculum for the City's Police training to address better communication skills which can coincide with the planned revamping of Police training. Commissioner Roberts noted the Center for Hearing and Communications has partnered with Barry University in these efforts.

Police Training

Commissioner Rogers asked if the City's Police Department is receiving enough training on terrorism. Commissioner Roberts stated the City had implemented better coordination training between first responders, City Police, Fire and EMS services in addition to City Staff. Commissioner Roberts noted he would get back to Commissioner Rogers on his specific questions regarding training on addressing incidents of terrorism. Further comments and discussions ensued regarding expanding cameras throughout the City to address possible incidents of terrorism and the importance of doing the correct way.

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Advisory Board Policy

Mayor Seiler raised the issue of revisiting CRA's policy for those on the CRA Advisory Board with conflicts of interest. Mayor Seiler noted conflicts in the CRA language requiring those on the CRA Board to have a vested interest in the CRA. In such cases, the CRA Advisory Board members should recuse themselves. Mayor Seiler expressed his concern over losing talented CRA Board Members. Commissioner McKinzie commented that in this situation, a CRA Board Member should recuse themselves.

Mayor Seiler noted the CRA Board needs to address this and institute a proper policy to ensure that CRA Advisory Board Members would recuse themselves from a vote that they could potentially directly profit from as opposed to resigning from a CRA Advisory Board. Further discussions ensued on the CRA Charter, the requirements to be a CRA Advisory Board Member, and the need for specific policy language in the City's CRA. It was noted that there should be language in the CRA Policy that those on the CRA Board are not allowed to be receiving CRA funds but can indirectly receive a benefit similar to all those residing in the improved CRA area and the City. The examples of property value increases and transportation improvements were noted. All Commission members requested this topic be brought back to the Commission for further discussion.

International City/County Managers Association

Mayor Seiler announced and congratulated City Manager Feldman for his upcoming appointment and swearing in as President of the International City/County Managers Association in Kansas City.

CONFERENCE REPORTS

CF-1 <u>16-1081</u> Central Beach Master Plan Public Improvement Projects Update

Mayor Seiler recognized Don Morris, Area Manager for the Beach CRA, who distributed updated drawings to the Commission for the Central Beach Master Plan. Mr. Morris introduced Paul Kissinger of EDSA who presented the Commission with the latest Central Beach Master Plan Public Improvement Projects Update. Mr. Kissinger gave the Commission a presentation update that addressed the façade of the garage. Mr. Kissinger also addressed the Commission's concerns about the garage's lighting, security, and the visibility of the restrooms on the parking lot roof. Comments on aspects of the update ensued from the Commission including the proposed artistic exterior of the parking garage. Mr. Morris addressed Mayor Seiler's understanding of what had been requested from the City's consultant as it related to the garage's lighting, security, the restrooms on the roof of the parking lot and the associated costs. Comments and discussions ensued from the Commission about softening the image of the garage, including the various ways of wrapping the garage with lighting, and perhaps mimicking the wraparound of the parking garage in Pompano Beach. Mr. Kissinger continued the presentation with comments, questions. and discussions from the Commission during the presentation. Mr. Morris asked for direction for the Commission on this update.

A copy of these drawings is attached to these minutes.

Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Paul Chettle, 200 S. Birch Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

City Manager Feldman stated that City Staff had met with the condominiums in the vicinity of the parking garage.

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Art Seitz, 1905 N. Atlantic Blvd., who

addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Vicki Mowrey, One Las Olas Circle, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Shirley Smith, One Las Olas Circle, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Abby Laughlin, 425 Bay Shore Drive, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mr. Kissinger again addressed the City Commission with updates on the costs and specifics relating to the wrapping the parking garage with and without the proposed lighting. Mr. Kissinger stated the cost of the wrapping the garage is approximately \$4,000,000 to \$5,000,000. Including the lights, Mr. Kissinger stated the cost to wrap the garage would be an additional \$1,000,000.

Discussions and comments ensued on the pros and cons of Pompano Beach's Beach garage wrap and the proposed EDSA garage wrap and its artistic design and costs. Vice Mayor Trantalis emphasized the garage's design will set the tone for future development in this area.

Mr. Kissinger stated the total cost of the garage with the current proposed design would be \$20,000,000 - \$21,000,000 which is down from \$28,000,000. Mr. Kissinger noted the wrap on the garage was approximately 20-25 percent of the cost of the garage. Discussions ensued regarding the majority of the Beach Redevelopment Advisory Board's (BRAB) support for the updated garage design with lighting including the Chairman of the BRAB, Anthony Abbate. Further discussions continued regarding the options for lighting portions of the garage. The Commission acknowledged they were ready to move forward with a consensus on the proposed design plan of the garage.

Commissioner Roberts raised the issue to set a policy to put aside the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) funding for the beach area when it sunsets.

Mayor Seiler again recognized Art Seitz, 1905 N. Atlantic Blvd., who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding additional issues regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler again recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding staying within the budget.

Mayor Seiler recognized Sherman Whitmore, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding items relating to the Aquatic Center. Comments and discussions ensued from the Commission and Mr. Whitmore.

CF-2 16-1138 South Side School Update

Alan Dodd, Assistant Public Works Director, addressed the Commission with City Staff's South Side School Update.

City Manager Feldman stated City Staff is making progress on a report for South Side School and will be ready for the Commission once they have final numbers on items such as change orders. This report should be available in the October/November 2016 timeframe.

Alan Dodd, Assistant Public Works Director, stated the outstanding change orders include Change Order Number Four which will be coming to the Commission at the first Commission Meeting in October 2016. Mr. Dodd stated there were two additional change orders contemplated, one for re-milling the wood and one for repairing the windows and the flashing for the windows. Mr. Dodd stated these two change orders are still being negotiated and will probably come before the Commission at the first meeting in November 2016.

Mayor Seiler asked City Manager Feldman what happened to the previous old wood at South Side School. City Manager Feldman stated a wood contractor had picked up a portion of the old wood at the direction of the general contractor. City Manager Feldman noted the remaining old wood was on the site on the outside of the building covered by a tarp and was disposed of. Mr. Dodd stated there was a great deal of non-Miami-Dade Pine mixed in with both lots of wood. Mr. Dodd confirmed once the recovered wood is re-milled, there should be approximately 2,000 feet of salvageable wood. He stated this would be placed in the most visible areas of the building after which the best alternative to provide for the additional 4,000 square feet of flooring will be decided. Mr. Dodd stated any of the salvageable wood that was three feet or longer was saved and is being re-milled for use at South Side School. Mr. Dodd also noted the roof had been sealed.

Discussions and comments ensued on the timeline for finishing this historic restoration project, ways to ensure sealing the entire building,

having a temporary seal/fix for the windows to mitigate the water and mold intrusion along with the need for a possible new roof. Commission McKinzie noted that preventing further damage to this building is the responsibility of the general contractor.

Mayor Seiler recognized Art Seitz, 1905 N. Atlantic Blvd., who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

OLD/NEW BUSINESS

BUS-1 16-1122 Innovative Development (ID) District Ordinance

Mayor Seiler recognized Ella Parker, Urban Design and Development Manager, Department of Sustainable Development. Ms. Parker began a PowerPoint Presentation reviewing the history of the City's Innovative Development (ID) District Ordinance. Mr. Jim Hetzel, Principal Planner, Department of Sustainable Development, continued the presentation. His presentation included the additional two sections of the ID Ordinance since its adoption, a review of the intent of the criteria, its guiding principles, and how this ordinance fits into the development review process including the most stringent requirements required by the ID Ordinance. Mr. Hetzel also gave a short review how City Staff reviews the applications.

A copy of the Department of Sustainable Development's PowerPoint presentation is attached to these minutes.

Ms. Parker addressed questions and comments from the Commission regarding issues and aspects of the ID Ordinance and how it differs from the City's Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Anthony Fajardo, Department of Sustainable Development Director, joined Ms. Parker in responding to the Commission's questions and issues relating to the ID Ordinance. It was noted that the ID Ordinance gives City Staff better direction than the City's PUD Ordinance. Further comments and discussion ensued on the ID Ordinance.

Vice Mayor Trantalis raised the issue that the intent of the ID Ordinance was not to have uncontrolled development in the City. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated the Department of Sustainable Development are the stewards of City's urban design on the beach and questioned why City Staff had interpreted the proposed Bahia Mar development

as satisfying the definition of the ID Ordinance. He also questioned why City Staff had presented it to the Commission when so many elements of the ID Ordinance were ignored and overridden to enhance the economic development of the City. Vice Mayor Trantalis further commented that nowhere in the ID Ordinance does it reference economic development. He also noted the primary criteria of City residents are the quality of life in our City, openness, cleanliness, and safety.

Vice Mayor Trantalis suggested to repeal the current ID Ordinance and go back to the drawing board as a community to come up with something that can assure the proposals presented by City Staff are more in line with what the community desires. Further discussions and comments ensued on the application and interpretation of the current ID Ordinance.

Mayor Seiler recognized Count Rosenthal, 1237 NW 4th Avenue, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Abby Laughlin, 425 Bay Shore Drive and designated representative of the Central Beach Alliance, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Brian Gillon, 2433 NE 8th Street and designated representative of SIHA PCC, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Miranda Lopez, 3031 NW 21st Street, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Mary Fertig, 511 Poinciana Drive, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Art Seitz, 1905 N. Atlantic Blvd., who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

The Commission agreed to move forward with re-establishing a committee to reexamine the ID ordinance as currently written. Vice Mayor Trantalis recalled the symposium held in November of 2013 where over 150 people showed up on the beach to participate in

creating the design criteria and taking the visioning process of 2035 to be more specific concerning the beach area. Vice Mayor Trantalis felt City Staff should have followed up this symposium in an expeditious way to come up with a Master Plan for the Beach. This would have allowed developers to understand to approach the City with projects within the guidelines and goals of what the community wants and envisions for the City's beach area. Further discussions and comments ensued.

Mayor Seiler requested the Department of Sustainable Development to come up with a list of proposed people to serve on the Committee to fine tune the ID Ordinance and to contact them to ascertain their willingness to serve on this Committee.

BUS-2 16-1118 Finance Department Informational Presentation

Kirk Buffington, Director of the City's Finance Department, addressed the Commission introducing those who would be presenting the PowerPoint presentation on two projects within the Finance Department as noted below:

Uncompensated Absences (completed) - Presented by Linda Logan-Short, Deputy Director of Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Modernization of the City's Procurement Process (in process) - Presented by Jennifer Alvarez, Manager of Procurement and Controller

Questions and comments ensued from the Commission during each presentation.

A copy of the Finance Department's PowerPoint Presentation covering the topics of the Uncompensated Absences and the Modernization of the City's Procurement is attached.

Following the Finance Department presentation, Mayor Seiler asked if anyone from the public was present for BUS-4. There was no one from the public present for BUS-4. Assistant Public Works Director, Dr. Nancy Gassman, the presenter on item BUS-4, was the only person in attendance. As such, Mayor Seiler announced at BUS-4 would be heard tonight following the Regular City Commission Meeting along with the CRA Meeting.

Mayor Seiler announced the next item on this Conference Agenda to be discussed this afternoon was BUS-3.

BUS-3 16-0966

Discussion of Land Swap Agreement with Barefoot Contessa, LLC

Mayor Seiler began the discussion on the Land Swap Agreement with Barefoot Contessa, LLC (Barefoot) by asking where each of the other members of the Commission stood on this topic. Mayor Seiler said he felt the land swap needs to happen. Discussions ensued, and each Commissioner gave their input on this item.

Discussions continued including getting all requirements met, and the possibility of getting more than the proposed 77 City parking spaces. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated he had discussions with the representatives of Barefoot for the City to get 200 parking spaces while keeping within the zoning requirement of 24 stories. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated City Manager Feldman suggested using a sliding scale based upon the number of stories so the City Commission can have flexibility in making a final decision.

Discussions ensued on the City having ideas and plans for the Natchez property such as a mixed-use project with a maximum height of four stories on the back side of the Bonnet House to assist with parking.

Regarding the allocated parking spots at the Sebastian site, Mayor Seiler agreed with the recommendation of a sliding scale approach, i.e., beginning at 24 stories the City receives 200 parking spaces. The Commission was in agreement to move forward with this recommendation.

City Manager Feldman asked the Commission if there was anything in the term sheet they felt had been overlooked or missed by City Staff so the final agreement can be brought before the Commission without any modifications or changes.

Vice Mayor Trantalis asked Stephanie Toothaker, Esq., with Tripp Scott on behalf of Barefoot Contessa, LLC, for confirmation that the City would have no obligation to participate in the developer's assemblage process for their development, and the land swap is not contingent on any City approval. Ms. Toothaker confirmed that there were no contingencies. Ms. Toothaker acknowledged after meetings with City Staff and City Manager Feldman that the current zoning is ABA and Barefoot Contessa will be submitting a development plan consistent with the current ABA zoning which will occur after the land swap is completed. City Manager Feldman noted once the land swap is completed, the City will have an easement that will continue to run for the current parking lot for the City and Casablanca until such time a building permit is issued.

A copy of the Term Sheet referenced in the Commission's discussions is attached to these minutes.

Following the discussions on BUS-3, Mayor Seiler again announced at BUS-4 would be heard tonight following the Regular City Commission Meeting along with the CRA Meeting.

Following the adjournment of the Regular Commission Meeting at 9:00 p.m., Mayor Seiler reconvened the City Commission Conference Meeting at 9:02 p.m.

Due to the fact that Mark Levin, 215 N. Birch Road, was not heard earlier on item BUS-3, Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Levin who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding Conference item BUS-3.

After completion of Mr. Levin's comments, the Conference Meeting continued with Conference Agenda item BUS-4.

BUS-4 16-1043

Update on the Status of City of Fort Lauderdale Energy Performance Contracting Projects

Mayor Seiler recognized Dr. Nancy Gassman, Assistant Public Works Director, who addressed the Commission giving them an update on the status of City of Fort Lauderdale Energy Performance Contracting Projects to reduce the City's energy footprint.

Dr. Gassman gave the Commission a PowerPoint presentation on this subject outlining the history of this topic, the steps the City has taken, the energy savings accomplished, the program specifics, and additional steps moving forward that could be cost neutral. Dr. Gassman noted a six percent reduction in the City's electrical energy costs from 2010 to 2016 and noted an additional fourteen percent reduction is necessary to meet the City's 20 by 20 goal. Dr. Gassman noted 12 years recoup time had been recommended by the City's Budget Department.

Questions, answers, and discussions ensued during Dr. Gassman's presentation. Vice Mayor Trantalis asked if these energy investments are being made in City buildings which will be replaced with the 12-year time frame to recoup the money spent on energy saving devices. City Manager Feldman stated that these energy saving investments were being made in all City-owned buildings that have a useful life beyond the cost savings 12 year recoup time.

A copy of Dr. Gassman's PowerPoint presentation is attached to these minutes.

Commission Rogers thanked Dr. Gassman for her continued community service specifically with realtors and waterway homeowners in addressing their concerns about the impact of sea level rise.

EXECUTIVE CLOSED DOOR SESSION

At 5:10 p.m. Mayor Seiler announced the commencement of the Executive Closed Door Session, under Florida Statute, Section 286.011(8)(a). Mayor Seiler noted the items to be discussed include:

- City of Fort Lauderdale v. Performance Trading, Inc., et al. Case No. CACE 15-013255 (12)
- Royal Ellison v. City of Fort Lauderdale Case No. CACE 16-007414 (08)
- Molly McCrae v. City of Fort Lauderdale Case No. 15-61927-CIV-ZLOCH
- Judith Donato v. City of Fort Lauderdale Case No. CACE 14-024440

Mayor Seiler announced those who will be present at the attorney-client session include:

Mayor, John P. "Jack" Seiler Vice Mayor, Dean J. Trantalis Commissioner, Robert L. McKinzie Commissioner, Bruce G. Roberts Commissioner, Romney Rogers City Manager, Lee R. Feldman City Attorney, Cynthia A. Everett

Re.: The City of Fort Lauderdale v. Performance Trading, Inc., et al.; Royal Ellison v. The City of Fort Lauderdale; and Molly McCrae v. The City of Fort Lauderdale, Counsel will be Assistant City Attorney, Alain E. Boileau;

Re.: Judith Donato v. The City of Fort Lauderdale, Outside Counsel will be W. Tucker Craig, Esq., of Billing Cochran Lyles Mauro & Ramsey PA, and a Certified Court Reporter with Daughters Reporting, Inc.

Mayor Seiler announced the estimated length of this attorney-client session is approximately 30 minutes.

BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

BD-1 <u>16-1115</u> Board and Committee Vacancies

See Regular Meeting item R-1.

CITY MANAGER REPORTS

None.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the City Commission at their Conference Meeting of September 20, 2016, Mayor Seiler adjourned the meeting at 10:23 p.m.